
5 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CITRUS COLLEGE ADULT EDUCATION CONSORTIUM 
 

REGULAR EXECUTIVE BOARD OPEN SESSION MEETING 
Tuesday, September 25, 2018 
1:30 p.m. 
Azusa Adult School – Multi-Purpose Room 
1134 S. Barranca Ave. 
Glendora, CA 91740 

 

Minutes – Approved 10/23/18 Act # 18-21 
 

1.0 CONVENE REGULAR EXECUTIVE BOARD CLOSED SESSION MEETING (1:30) 

1.1 Meeting called to order by Chair Linda McNary at __1:38 pm__ 

1.2 Pledge of Allegiance 

1.3 Roll call: 

Rocky Cifone, Representative     

Felipe Delvasto, Representative 

Ron Letourneau, Representative 

Calvin McKendrick, Representative 

Linda McNary, Representative 

Kevin Morris, Representative 

Marc Bommarito, Fiscal Services 

David Conway, Fiscal Services 

Pamela Escalante, Fiscal Services 

 

Present 

Present 

Present 

Present 

Present 

Tardy 

Absent 

Present 

Absent 

 

John Russell, Regional Director     

Flint Fertig, Proxy/Prog. Asst.  

Jessica Michel, Secretary               

Rick Crosby, Proxy 

Rebecca Summers, Proxy 

Saida Valdez, Proxy 

Debbie Wong, Proxy 

Jula Reyes, Fiscal Services 

Karen Waltmen, Fiscal Serv. 

Janette Walczk, Fiscal Serv. 

 

Present 

Present 

Present  

Absent 

Absent 

Present 

Present 

Absent 

Absent 

Absent 



6 
 

2.0 ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Representative discussion/presentation of agenda items which could be moved up on the 
agenda. 

None at this time. 

2.1 Approve the minutes of the August 14, 2018 Regular Executive Board Open Session Meeting. 

Act # 18-14 Motion by Mr. Delvasto, seconded by Mr. Letourneau Vote to Approve 5-0  

Representative Cifone Y  Representative Delvasto Y  Representative Letourneau Y  

Representative McKendrick Y Representative McNary Y Representative Morris A  

3.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

3.1 Representative reports: 

Azusa: Mrs. McNary introduced Saida Valdez, the new Assistant Director. Mrs. McNary also 
reported Azusa submitted their iTrain application.  
 
Citrus: No report. 
 
Claremont: Mr. Delvasto reported that Claremont just started their new semester, and they 
changed to open enrollment. 
 
Duarte: Absent.  
 
Glendora: No report. 
 
Monrovia: No report. 
 

3.2 Program Director report. 

Mr. Russell stated there will be no Program Director report due to the lengthy agenda. 

3.3 Public comment for items not on the agenda. 

No public comments were put forth at this time. 

3.3.1 Public comments for items on the Open Session Agenda. 

No public comments were put forth at this time. 

4.0 BOARD APPROVAL TO MOVE CALENDARED OCTOBER 9, 2018 MEETING OCTOBER 23, 
2018 

Act # 18-15 Motion by Mr. Delvasto, seconded by Mr. Letourneau Vote to Approve 5-0  

Representative Cifone Y  Representative Delvasto Y  Representative Letourneau Y  

Representative McKendrick Y Representative McNary Y Representative Morris A  

Mr. Russell stated the next meeting will be changed from October 9th to October 23rd. Mr. Russell 
will send a calendar invite to all the representatives.  

 

 



7 
 

5.0 BOARD APPROVAL FOR REGIONAL DIRECTOR TO PREPARE AGENDA FOR CCAEC 
BOARD MEETINGS 

Act # 18-16 Motion by Mr. McKendrick, seconded by Mr. Delvasto Vote to Approve 5-0  

Representative Cifone Y  Representative Delvasto Y  Representative Letourneau Y  

Representative McKendrick Y Representative McNary Y Representative Morris A  

6.0 BOARD APPROVAL OF 2018-19 FISCAL REPORTING AGREEMENT 

Vote tabled. 

Mr. Russell gave a brief background on this agenda item. He stated that the board ratified this 
Agreement on the last meeting, and members were going to take the information back to their 
individual boards. Mr. Russell suggested the board not vote to approve, if every rep has not 
received individual institution approval. All members agreed to table this agenda item until the 
next meeting. 

7.0 BOARD APPROVAL OF 2017-18 Q3 EXPENDITURE REPORT 

Act # 18-17 Motion by Mrs. McNary, seconded by Mr. McKendrick Vote to Approve 5-0  

Representative Cifone Y  Representative Delvasto Y  Representative Letourneau Y  

Representative McKendrick Y Representative McNary Y Representative Morris A 

Mr. Russell explained he needed to de-certify the previously approved Q3 Expenditure Report so 
that Claremont could make some revisions. Mr. Delvasto explained that Claremont needed to 
replace some AEP funds with WIOA funds, which lowered 2017-18 AEP Expenditures. The 
expenditures in the Q3 report were initially reported as AEP funds because WIOA funds had 
been received late. Once Claremont received the WIOA funds, those funds were moved into the 
Q3 AEP expenditures. The net result was that Claremont would have some carryover in AEP 
from 2017-18, but well within state mandates.  

8.0 BOARD APPROVAL OF 2017-18 Q4 EXPENDITURE REPORT 

Act # 18-18 Motion by Mr. McKendrick, seconded by Mr. Delvasto Vote to Approve 6-0  

Representative Cifone Y  Representative Delvasto Y  Representative Letourneau Y  

Representative McKendrick Y Representative McNary Y Representative Morris Y 

Mr. Russell advised each member representative to discuss the original budget and how the 
budget was revised. After that, each rep would walk members through LAGL015 and LAGL019 
reports and answer any questions. 
 
Azusa: 
Mrs. McNary stated that Azusa had to make substantial changes to their budget due to the large 
carryover amount from previous year, which had not been correctly reported to her by Fiscal 
Services. In the first budget, Ms. McNary initially budgeted a large amount of funds under Object 
Code 4000, Materials and Supplies, as more of a placeholder. Mr. Russell advised that in the 
future, Azusa should budget the correct amount in Object Code 4000 and let the carryover be 
accurately reflected in the budget. Ms. McNary explained Azusa held back on expending some 
funds due to not knowing the future of the school’s location, since there had been discussion with 
the district about relocating the campus. Mrs. McNary also stated that in object code 5000, Azusa 
expended over originally budgeted. This occurred due to a chargeback from the district for 
custodial services, not originally in the budget. She stated Azusa rectified these custodial 
salaries for future budgeting purposes.  
 
 
 



8 
 

Claremont: 
Mr. Delvasto stated that Claremont’s budget went through some changes due to late arrival of 
WIOA funds. He stated that they ended 2017-18 with a $120,000 carryover. Mr. Russell added 
that Claremont’s budget revision was less than 2% in one category; Mr. Delvasto specified it was 
actually .05. In addition, Mr. Delvasto stated that Claremont originally planned to hire a new 
counselor. This plan ended up not happening, therefore resulting in more budget revisions.  
 
Glendora: 
Mr. Letourneau stated the one change to Glendora’s budget was for Object Code 6000 as there 
was a capital outlay of $5,188 for TOPSpro Enterprise printer. Glendora had a carryover of 
$125,000. Mr. Letourneau is meeting with Dr. Rebecca Summers next week to discuss how they 
plan to expend the $125,000 in carryover and they will present this plan at the future budget 
board meeting. Mr. Russell added that Glendora spent 67% of AEP funds so the school was 
within state mandates. Mr. Conway asked about an item on the first page of the LAGL019 report, 
where teacher salaries where entered in a lump sum fashion instead of monthly, as should be 
the norm (the amount was $74,182.29). Mr. Russell believed the action may have occurred 
because Glendora’s fiscal services still was using two resource codes (63910 and 63911) 
instead of combining AEP funds, as he had received an email about combining funds from 
Pamela Escalante. Mr. Russell suggested the board approve the report conditionally, while Mr. 
Letourneau looks into this. 
 
Duarte: 
Mr. Morris stated that adjustments were made due to incorrect original budget numbers. Mr. 
Fertig brought up concerns that some Q4 AEP expenditures for Duarte appeared to look like the 
CTE Incentive Grant expenditures, which is a K-12 grant. Mr. Fertig suggested that Duarte 
makes sure its K-12 programs are funded separately from the Duarte Parent University. 

Mr. Morris explained that Duarte is restructuring parent university to have 12 hour classes. He 
added that the grant is supporting the program by paying for the advertising such as t-shirts (this 
is found in category 5000), paying for the equipment such as laptops, providing dinner, 
translation services, daycare for students’ children, etc. Mrs. McNary asked if the parent 
university was an ongoing program. Mr. Morris explained that it is ongoing, and it is 12 hour 
courses within 1 module and an outside agency will be providing the curriculum. Mr. Delvasto 
expressed concern and stated that Mr. Morris should be cautious about mixing funds. He added 
that the consortium should not be paying for programs for which the district LCFF should be 
paying. Mr. Russell also added that there is no data for the expenses, and this should be a 
concern to the board, especially since there is a big push for oversight and effectiveness. Mr. 
Russell also asked Mr. Morris about “B&H Photo” from LAGL019 report. Mr. Morris stated that 
should not be on there; it is for K-12 video production. Mr. Russell asked Mr. Morris to look into 
this with Duarte’s business services people, and he will follow up with him.  
(Attached to these minutes are an email and revised Duarte reports. The B&H Photo 
expenditures were removed, and subsequently, Duarte spent below the 60% state mandate and 
Fiscal Expenditure Agreement. This is triggering a plan and timeline for Duarte to spend AEP 
funds.) 
 
Monrovia: 
Since Mr. McKendrick had just been seated as a board rep, Mr. Russell presented the Q4 
Expenditure Report on behalf of Monrovia. He advised that budget changes occurred in Object 
Code 1000 and 2000 because Monrovia’s Instructional Salaries increased, and Non-Instructional 
salaries decreased, and employee benefits were about the same. There was a big increase in 
category 5000 operational, but this had already been presented to the board. He reminded the 
board that a large amount of that was for targeted marketing that has resulted in a large increase 
of CTE revenues.  



9 
 

Mr. Russell pointed out that MUSD took the allowed 5% of direct expenses for indirect expenses 
for a total of $66,081. He also noted that in addition to the 5% indirect fees, MUSD took an 
additional $23,002 in administration fees for serving as fiscal agent.  He explained that the state 
allows up to 5% of the total AEP funds for “administration” and that the $23,002 plus the program 
management fees were significantly below the 5% threshold. Mrs. McNary asked why there are 2 
expenditure amounts in Object Code 5000. He noted that the additional funds (the additional 
$23,002) needed to be moved in the budget because NOVA does not allow more than 5% in 
indirect fees. Mr. Russell explained that is what Monrovia did to show separation of indirect fees 
and fiscal agent fees. Mr. Russell advised the board he would ask the state which Object Code 
would be correct for reporting the expenditures. 

(Mr. Russell received clarification from the state and that clarification was presented in the same 
email that revised Duarte’s expenditures. The email is attached to these minutes.) 

(Also, the final certified Q4 Expenditure Report is attached to these minutes as well.) 

 

9.0 BOARD APPROVAL OF 2018-19 CFAD REVISION 

Act # 18-19 Motion by Mr. Delvasto, seconded by Mrs. McNary Vote to Approve 6-0  

Representative Cifone Y  Representative Delvasto Y  Representative Letourneau Y  

Representative McKendrick Y Representative McNary Y Representative Morris Y 

Mr. Russell explained that the consortium received a small amount of additional funding, and 
Monrovia turned back $15,000 in funds for oversight. Oversight funds were no longer needed 
due to the CCAEC reporting procedures adopted by all members that provided significant 
transparency. The CFAD only changed by small percentages. Mr. Russell stated that in addition 
to this approval, member reps would need to log in to NOVA and submit their approval. Mr. 
Conway handed out the disbursement schedule based on the new CFAD amount and advised 
he would send out the first disbursement of funds when he receives the check from the state.  

10.0 REGIONAL DIRECTOR PRESENTATION OF BUDGET BACK-UP DOCUMENTATION FOR 
2018-19 BUDGET REVISIONS 

*Mr. Russell suggested to move up agenda item 13.0 and then come back to 10.0. 

Mr. Russell presented to the board a revised copy of the CCAEC Member Annual Plan that had 
had a new Section with a revenue budget by category including all revenue sources, not just 
AEP funds. He suggested the board require expenditures be detailed suggested by Object Code 
for every revenue source. Based on current requirements in NOVA, only AEP budget and 
expenditures are reported. Mr. Russell emphasized to the board that there need to be some kind 
of transparency that backs up how all revenue sources are budgeted and expended by Object 
Code. For example, Mr. Russell stated that Monrovia spends a lot of money in advertising, but 
that advertising is generating significant fees. He suggested there should be full transparency 
with that budget and expenditure. 
(As it turns, new NOVA protocols are requiring that consortia report all leverage funding 
sources.) 

11.0 REGIONAL DIRECTOR PRESENTATION OF CCAEC ANNUAL DATA REVIEW FALL 2018 

Mr. Russell presented the Monrovia Annual Data Review and the beginnings of the CCAEC 
Annual Data Review. He stated that all Monrovia staff spent 2 hours going through Monrovia’s 
ADR and it facilitated tremendous conversations. Mr. Russell encouraged the representatives to 
do the same type of review for their own schools. Mr. Russell will complete a CCAEC ADR that is 
as comprehensive as the Monrovia ADR and that it will be used to drive the 3 year plan. 
Mr. Russell did get into some of the details of the beginning CCAEC ADR. He mentioned that 
Monrovia created 3 counseling classes to track people who walk in the door: ESL, HSD/HSE 



10 
 

(Academic), and Career and that these classes were capturing a lot of “Services Provided” data 
in TOPSpro Enterprise. He advised that it was important that members capture the people who 
come through the school because they are using time and resources.  
(A detail review of consortium data will be presented at the 12/14 conference.) 

12.0 BOARD APPROVAL OF CCAEC PD CONFERENCE FOR 12/14/2018 

Act # 18-20 Motion by Mr. Delvasto, seconded by Mr. Letourneau Vote to Approve 6-0  

Representative Cifone Y  Representative Delvasto Y  Representative Letourneau Y  

Representative McKendrick Y Representative McNary Y Representative Morris Y 

Mr. Russell reiterated that the annual plan states that CCAEC do 2 conferences a year. Mr. 
Russell clarified that the conferences do not need to specifically pertain to ESL. He would like 
these conferences to expand beyond ESL, and focus more on CTE and academic this year. To 
ensure the consortium meets the annual plan, Mr. Russell stated that we could possibly push 1 
conference to January, and do the other in May. Mr. Russell reminded representatives that are 
all members receive WIOA, and there is a Professional Development plan due at the end of 
October. Mrs. McNary asked what the goal of professional development day is. Mr. Russell 
stated that the goal needs to revolve around how we improve data outcomes, and how we reach 
more students. Mrs. McNary mentioned that she would like to see focus on the new reading 
standards for CASAS. Mr. Russell suggested to the board that we should get approval now so 
we can start planning, especially since there are budgetary implications involved. 

13.0 BOARD DISCUSSION – PURPOSE & VISION FOR FACULTY ADVISORY COMMITTEES 
(FACS) 

**This item came earlier in the meeting. 

Ms. Carol Burrill and Ms. Olga Habayeb reported to the board about what the ESL FAC had 
been doing. Ms. Habayeb stated that last year the ESL FAC worked on aligning completely all 
Language Proficiency Objectives. She stated that they completed grammar exit exams for each 
level, and piloted the exams. The ESL FAC still needs to meet and talk about outcomes. Mrs. 
McNary asked if there is a document for aligning LPO’s. Olga and Mr. Russell gave confirmation 
on this. Mrs. Burrill mentioned a telephone conference she had with Mr. Russell regarding the 
new English proficiency standards, and seeing how they align with our LPO’s. With 6 hours per 
month (per person) for an ESL FAC meeting, Mrs. McNary wanted to know what the 
expectations are and the outcomes per month. Mr. Delvasto would like to know the agendas for 
these meetings, and read the minutes. Mrs. Burrill mentioned that the deadline for the trainings 
on new English language proficiency standards for adult education is today. Mr. Russell 
suggested each representative look at their individual budgets. Mr. Russell suggested maybe 
Glendora and Monrovia can send someone, and then we can do “train the trainer” model. 

14.0 ADJOURN CCAEC EXECUTIVE BOARD OPEN SESSION MEETING at 4:35 pm 

 
































































